
Hilltown Community Health Center 
Board of Directors Meeting 

August 12,2021 
https://hchcweb-org.zoom.us/j/97600369054?pwd=b2cyeUtmdHNlcGN1R2hINEpWUm90QT09 

 Meeting ID: 976 0036 9054                Passcode: 627611 
5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Time  Topic Purpose Presenter 

5:30 PM Call to Order and Approval of Minutes Vote Needed Lee Manchester 

5:35 PM Finance Committee Report Vote Needed Treasurer 
John Melehov 
 

    
5:55 PM Committee Reports 

• Executive Committee 
• Fundraising Committee 
• Personnel 
• Facilities 
• Recruitment Orientation and 

Nomination 
• Strategic Planning 

 

Vote Needed  
Lee Manchester 
Nancy Brenner 
John Follet 
Alan Gaitenby 
Wendy Long 
 
Nancy Brenner 

6:20 PM Senior Management Reports 
• Credentialing and Privileging Report 
• Quality Improvement Report 
• Risk Management 
• Employee Recognitions 

o Ellen Degraves  
 

 
Vote Needed 
Vote Needed 
Vote Needed 
Inform 

 
Michael Purdy 
Vickie Dempesy 
Michael Purdy 
Vickie Dempesy 

6:50 PM New Business 
• COVID-19 Vaccine Mandate Update  

 

 
Inform/Discussion 
 
 

 
Michael Purdy 

7:15 PM Old Business 
• EPIC Update  

 

 
Inform/Discussion 
 

 
Michael Purdy 

7:20 PM Executive Session (if needed) Discussion 
 

Lee Manchester 

7:30 PM Adjourn Vote Needed Lee Manchester 
 

Upcoming Meetings 
• Thursday, September 9, 2021 at 5:30 PM via Zoom 
• Thursday, October 14, 2021 at 5:30 PM via Zoom 
• Thursday, November 11, 2021 at 5:30 PM via Zoom 

https://hchcweb-org.zoom.us/j/97600369054?pwd=b2cyeUtmdHNlcGN1R2hINEpWUm90QT09


 1 

HCHC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES  
Date/Time: 7/29/2021 4:30pm 
Zoom Meeting  
 
MEMBERS: Lee Manchester, President; John Follet, Vice President; Kathryn Jensen, Clerk; Matt 
Bannister; Seth Gemme; Wendy Long 
STAFF:  Eliza Lake, CEO; John Melehov, CFO; Vickie Dempsey, COO; Tabitha Griswold, Executive 
Assistant 
ABSENT: Jennica Gallagher; Alan Gaitenby; Nancy Brenner; Michael Purdy, CCCSO 
 
 
Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decisions/ 

Next Steps/ 
Person 
Responsible 
Due Date 

Review of 
Minutes 
6/8/2021 
 
 
 

Lee Manchester called the meeting to order at 4:34 pm.  
 
Lee reported that Deb Leonczyk submitted her resignation 
from the Board, there is a membership of nine currently.   
 
Notes from previous informational meeting will be reviewed 
and discussed as needed.  
 
John Follet moved to approve the June minutes as amended. 
Wendy Long seconded the motion.  

The Board 
unanimously 
approved to the 
June 8th minutes 
as amended.  

Finance 
Committee  

• The notes from the Finance Committee report were 
reviewed, no further discussion.  

Kathryn Jensen moved to approve the Finance Committee 
report. Wendy Long seconded the motion. 

The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
Finance 
Committee 
report. 

Committee 
Reports 

• Reviewed the notes of the July 8th meeting that 
included all the Committee reports. 

• Discussed the possibility of meeting in person as 
discussed in the Executive Committee report, but 
agreed that the current state of transmission makes 
decisions impossible.  

• Wendy provided an update to the RON Committee 
report on the several potential candidates in the 

The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
Committee 
Reports. 



 2 

pipeline. One of which is scheduled to meet with RON 
Committee members tomorrow.  

• Eliza Lake noted that the staff satisfaction survey is 
going out next week 

• Eliza noted that Senior Management is looking into 
hiring a consultant to support the Board’s Strategic 
Planning efforts, given the challenges and opportunities 
HCHC faces in the next few years.  

• Eliza reported that, as reported at the July 8th meeting, 
replacing the HVAC will be very expensive, and noted 
that she and John are working on fully understanding 
what the options may be.  

 
Wendy Long moved that the Committee reports be 
approved. John Follet seconded the motion. 

Credentialing/ 
Privileging 
Report 

• There were no employees credentialed and privileged.   

Quality 
Improvement/
Risk 
Management  

In addition to reviewing the notes from the July 8th meeting, 
Vickie Dempesy added that the Point of Care (POC) 
vaccination efforts are moving forward at all three sites. 
There will be a pop-up clinic in Chesterfield at the General 
Store on August 13th. There are also plans to do a clinic at the 
Cummington Fair on Saturday and Sunday, August 21st and 
22nd.  
Kathryn Jensen moved to accept the Quality Improvement 
report, Seth Gemme seconded that motion. 
 
The Board reviewed the notes from Michael Purdy’s report at 
the July 8th meeting.  In Michael’s absence, Eliza stated there 
were no further developments in Risk Management.  
Matt Bannister moved to accept the Risk Management 
report, Kathryn Jensen seconded that motion. 

The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
Quality 
Improvement 
Report.  
 
 
 
 
The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve the Risk 
Management 
Report. 

New Business John Melehov reviewed his presentation on the need to 
reprocure HCHC’s auditing services, including cost and 
experience.  He outlined how firms that bid were rated, and 
why the recommendation was to contract with Whittlesey 
Forward Advising based in Hartford, CT. There was 
unanimous support from the Finance Committee for 
Whittlesey, and it recommended that the Board support this 
choice.   

The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve the 
contracting with 
Whittlesey 
Forward 
Advising for 
auditing services 



 3 

John Follet moved to accept the contracting with 
Whittlesey Forward Advising for 2021-2024, Wendy Long 
seconded that motion. 

 

for the next 
three years.  
 

Old Business The Board approved acknowledged its approval via email on 
June 23rd of the HRSA FTCA and C8F applications, as outlined 
in the July 8th notes and as documented in emails that will be 
attached to the meeting minutes.  

 

Adjourn  The meeting was adjourned at 5:06 pm. The next scheduled 
meeting will be August 12, 2021 via Zoom.   
Wendy Long moved the meeting be adjourned. John Follet 
seconded the motion.  
 

The Board voted 
unanimously to 
approve 
adjournment. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
Tabitha Griswold, Executive Assistant 
 
 



 1 

HCHC BOARD OF DIRECTORS Notes  
Date/Time: 7/08/2021 5:30pm 
Zoom Meeting  
 
MEMBERS: Lee Manchester, President; John Follet, Vice President and Treasurer; Alan Gaitenby; 
Nancy Brenner; Wendy Long 
STAFF:  Eliza Lake, CEO; Michael Purdy, CCCSO; John Melehov, CFO; Vickie Dempsey, COO; 
Tabitha Griswold, Executive Assistant 
ABSENT: Deb Leonczyk; Matt Bannister; Seth Gemme; Kathryn Jensen, Clerk; Jennica Gallagher 
 
 
Agenda Item Summary of Discussion Decisions/ 

Next Steps/ 
Person 
Responsible 
Due Date 

Review of 
Minutes 
6/8/2021 
 
 
 

Lee Manchester called the meeting to order at 5:36 pm.  
 
Page 4 grammatical correction from “moral” to “morale” 
needed for the June minutes.  
 
 

 

Finance 
Committee  

• John Follet reported on the May financials. The highlights 
include a $146K net income and cash position remains 
strong. There were no significant changes in patient 
revenues from the months prior. Pharmacy income was 
strong for the month of May. Compared to 2019 financials, 
there is still a deficit in Medical and Dental patient 
revenues. The salaries are down a little due to a loss of a 
provider in the month of May. Cash flow shows a gain of 
$200K. Current assets are at 3.6M and the current 
liabilities at 1.2M with a favorable ratio. The PPP was not 
counted at all in these financials, the 330 Grant needed to 
be spent out by May.  

 

Staff 
Presentation 

• Joanna Martin, Nutrition and QI Coordinator presented 
the three quality initiatives goals and interventions. 
Joanna reported that we have met our goal of the 
depression screening (PHQ2). The hypertension goal is 
82% to have well controlled blood pressure, we are 
currently at 55%. 36.6% percent of patient with a patient 
of A1C or greater, we are moving in the right direction 

 



 2 

with a goal of 20%. Another program is the care plan 
module for medical records to capture the work being 
done.  

Executive 
Committee 

• Lee Manchester reported that the committee met on June 
23rd. The RON committee was invited to this meeting to 
discuss Board recruitment. The CEO salary range was 
discussed before January of 2022. Also discussed meeting 
in person and the likelihood of that happening by fall, 
which are contingent of the case numbers.  

 
 

Recruitment, 
Orientation & 
Nominating 
(RON) 
Committee 

• Wendy Long reported that the committee met along with 
the Executive Committee. Wendy did reach out to Deb 
Leonczyk about her interest in continuing on the Board, 
this will be communicated with Lee.  

 
 
  

Facilities 
Committee 

• Alan Gaitenby reported that this committee has not met. 
However, the committee has grown and Kathryn Jensen 
has joined.   

 

Personnel 
Committee 

• John Follet reported that this committee has not met.  
The staff satisfaction will be going out soon.  

 
 

Strategic 
Planning  

• Nancy Brenner reported that the committee has not met.   

Fundraising 
Committee  

• Nancy Brenner reported that the committee has not met. 
Nancy did not get to speak to Alex before this meeting 
however the photography is complete and should have a 
draft soon.     

 

Committee 
Reports 

  

Credentialing/ 
Privileging 
Report 

• Michael Purdy reported that there were no employees 
credentialed and privileged. 

 

Quality 
Improvement/
Risk 
Management  

Vickie Dempesy reported on last month’s QI Committee 
discussion of Quality Improvement: 

o An update on the vaccination efforts, and number of 
doses.  

o Improved reporting will go into effect with a review of 
the dashboards.  

 
Michael reported on the QI/RM Committee’s Risk 
Management discussion: 
• There are no incidents to report. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3 

• Onboarding new providers and the process of that 
recruitment.  

• Infection Control are using the State guidelines to develop. 
Working with Franklin Counties IC team to see what they 
are doing.  

• Implementing a-systemic testing and developing a 
protocol for systematic patient testing.  

• FTCA application was approved 6 days after the 
submission with no comments.  

• Strengthening training protocol as well as adding more 
protocols with Katie Kirouac, HR Generalist and Eliza.  

 
 
 

CEO Report • Eliza Lake provided a verbal CEO report presentation this 
month. 

• Eliza Stated that EPIC will have a packet ready for the 
August meeting, and get a sense of the Boards decision. 
There would be a vote in September.  

• MassHealth payment rates are still unknown, and based 
on January 2020 numbers. Estimated to be around $800-
1MIL a year.  

• The state supplement payment has come through at 
about $300K as of today, this will be seen in next month 
finances.  

•  The PCMH is still ongoing, with Alex driving that work. A 
change in hours is being determined currently.  

• Interviewing for a DEI Coordinator with a candidate with 
much more experience than we have seen.  

• The HVAC Assessment report came back in and is very 
expensive due to Huntington and Worthington being 
essentially “end of life.” Could cost up to $1Mil to fix and 
would take 3-6 months to upgrade each site. Likely to go 
out to bid on three phase designs. 

• Do have a contract with Paragus to support the IT  
• The solar project will be up by September   

 
 

Staff 
Recognition 

• Due to time constraint, there were no employees 
recognized this month.   

 

New Business • Eliza presented the Bids for 2021-2023. There were 
three companies that submitted bids. The bids were 
ranked by price, and relevant experience as seen in the 
presentation. There was unanimous support from the 
Finance Committee for Whittlesey.   

 
 



 4 

Old Business • FTA and C8F were voted electronically. Attached email 
string.   

 

Executive 
Session 

Executive session was called to order.    

Adjourn  The meeting ended at 7:00 pm. There will be a Doodle poll 
sent to all member for the best time to meet in nJuly for a 
quorum. The next scheduled meeting will be August 12, 2021 
via Zoom.   

 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
Tabitha Griswold, Executive Assistant 
 
 



Interim Financial Statement Presentation 
June 2021 – Presented 8/11/2021



Highlights

 ($219K) Net Income
 Grant billing temporarily suspended to allow for PPP coordination 

 ($325K) cash flow 
 Includes mortgage payoff 

 Accrual Income Statement will be overwhelmingly positive after 
PPP applied on July statement 
 Forgiveness application submitted 7/27/21 

 Cash position remains strong



Income Statement

 Patient revenue mostly lateral 

 Pharmacy remains strong

 330 not charged while expense is being accumulated to exhaust PPP

 Catch-up billing will occur after PPP applied on July statement 

Do not be alarmed. Revenue was intentionally suppressed to avoid double 
dipping with grant money. 



YTD 2021 vs 2019



 Salaries reasonably close to budget

 A large portion of salaries covered by grant money

 PPP, 330, additional HRSA funds… 



• June would easily have been in the black had the 330 been billed



Cash Flow

 Cash on hand decreased ($325K) 



Balance Sheet

 Current Assets = $3.2 M

 Current Liabilities = $1.1 M (PPP improperly included as current in statement)

 Current Ratio = 3.0


	8-12-21 Agenda
	August 12,2021
	Meeting ID: 976 0036 9054                Passcode: 627611
	5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m.

	7-29-21 Minutes
	07-08-21 Notes
	June 2021 Board Presentation

